

CITY OF LINCOLN CITY

PARKS & RECREATION BOARD

August 21, 2024, 2:30 PM

APPROVAL DATE:	
_	

A. Call to Order

Attendee Name	Title	Status	Arrived
Donna Eddy	Board Member	Present	
Robert Vincent	Board Member	Present	
Beth Towers	Board Member	Present	
Jane Mulholland	Board Member	Present	
Joan Prins	Board Member	Present	
Shawn Wood	Board Member	Present	
Stephen Percy		Excused	

Also attending Jeanne Sprague LCP&R Director, Cheryl Knight LCP&R Admin Assistant, Understory Landscape Architects Andrea Kuns, Amy Cragg and Nick Drummond. Monte Demaris LCP&R Parks Supervisor arrived later. Jane Mulholland's grandson (name?)

B. Minutes

a. July 2024 LCP&R Board Minutes

Chair Mulholland asked if there were any corrections or additions to the July 24, 2024 minutes. There were no corrections or additions. Chair Mullholland called for a motion. Joan Prins moved to accept the minutes. Shawn Wood seconded the motion.

There was no discussion.

b. Vote Results

RESULT:	PASSED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
AYES:	Eddy, Vincent, Towers, Mulholland, Prins, Wood

C. Presentations

a. Presentations

Understory Architects gave a presentation, which included updates on the Sandcastle Playground and the Schooner Creek Discovery Park (SCDP).

Sandcastle Playground: the overall project schedule was discussed. They also summarized the data gathered at the community engagement event, held in May, and from the online survey. They also reviewed the existing site conditions and presented two (2) design concepts for the playground.

67 people (43 adults, 24 children) attended the community engagement event and the online survey had 116 respondents (112 adults, 4 children), for a total of 183 responses. Several themes were presented and based on those responses, the Sandcastle and Dune theme was the preference (46.2%).

During this process, the community's desire to replace the Sandcastle playground with a similar playground was clear. Understory drilled down further to determine what people loved about the existing Sandcastle Playground, what were the favorite play elements and what they thought is missing and/or could be changed, so they could factor that information into the new design. Creating accessibility is key.

Chair Mulholland commented that she was happy to hear of the probability of going forward with a wood structure. She believes that a wood structure fits within the environment, and she had heard that many community members were concerned that the current wood structure would be replaced with a plastic structure.

The existing conditions of the playground were discussed (including topography, grading, circulation, access and character).

The two (2) design concepts presented were 1) Hillside Castle and 2) Sand Dune. These concepts were preliminary and were not specific about play equipment, but were more approaches to the overall play area.

Chair Mulholland asked if the two (2) design concepts were going back to the public for further input. Director Sprague told her that due to importance of staying on track with the timeline, they were not planning to go back to the public with both concepts. Both concepts have been presented to city staff and the Board, and unless they believe it's necessary to go back to the public, the decision will be made without further public input.

Robert Vincent stated that after seeing both concepts side-by-side in this presentation, he believes there is no question that the Hillside concept is closer to what the public wants.

Joan Prins expressed concerns about the slide being duplicative of the one being installed at SCDP, and wants to make sure it's unique. Chair Mulholland said the idea of incorporating the retaining walls into the structure itself is a great concept.

There was a short discussion on which concept was more accessible, with several people feeling like the Hillside castle has more accessibility.

Shawn Wood stated that she believed the Hillside Castle concept would cost more. Andrea Kuns confirmed that it was hard to quantify costs at this preliminary stage, but that was likely to be true, since building walls and structures cost more than grading and topography. She also indicated that as they go forward, their team will be looking at grading, the sizes of the terraces and walls, and determining if there are benefits to working with the existing walls and through this process, they will be cognizant of budget.

Director Sprague noted that, at this stage, they were not focusing on the budget, but rather what the public input was and how much we could match it to what Understory could do. Public expectation and reaction are very important, along with accessibility, and we need to have it as close to what we have learned the public wants, as possible, from the public outreach we did.

Chair Mulholland agreed, noting that expectations are very high since the existing structure is so cherished. She believes the Hillside Castle is going to come the closest to creating something where people will see the connection between the old and the new and feel like, even though it is not the same, there are some enhancements. Shawn Wood mentioned that she believes the Hillside Castle makes more sense next to the lake than a sand dune, with others agreeing.

The Board agreed to move forward with the Hillside Castle concept, with Director Sprague confirming that they were all comfortable not going back to the public, at this stage. Chair Mulholland's grandson raised a question about whether the towers in the play structure will be tall enough for people to stand up, because the current structure included areas where it was easy to hit your head while trying to stand up. Director Sprague thought that was a great question and she will follow-up on that.

Understory will be coming back to the Board on 10/16/2024, where they will have the design refined, the 30% drawings complete and the estimate, but they won't have the illustrative graphics that will be shown at the public event scheduled for November. That event was briefly discussed.

Schooner Creek Discovery Park: Understory expects to begin the design of Phase 2 next week. With regards to Phase 1, Understory talked to the contracting team today (8/21/24) and the goal is to have the equipment and safety surfacing installed in early October, contingent on the equipment arriving on time and having good weather. The pour-in-place surfacing needs to be installed in good weather for the long-term lifespan and weathering of that material.

Assuming we stay to that schedule, Chair Mulholland asked what would be the completion timeline. Andrea Kuns said the contracting team expects to be done in October, although there will be planting that will happen after that. Director Sprague said that K&E will have a good idea in mid-September of when we would be able to open it to the public. If all goes as planned, we would have the ribbon cutting in November and open it to the public at that time. She encouraged the Board members to go take a look at the progress. She also mentioned that she will be going to the City Council on Monday (8/26/2024) for approval to start the Phase 2 design. As soon as she gets that approval, she will let Understory know that they can begin.

The Understory group left the meeting, and Monte Demaris arrived.

D. Parks & Recreation Staff Reports

a. LCP&R Staff Report

There were no additional questions or comments.

E. Parks and Recreation Budget Update

There was no discussion.

F. Unfinished Business

a. Unfinished Business

Applicant for Board - Director Sprague stated that there is an applicant for the Board who has been interviewed, who will go before the City Council on Monday (8/26/2024). There were no further questions on Board member roles or terms.

b. Adding a Youth Board member - Director Sprague noted that she has compiled everything and City Attorney, David Robinson, is aware we want to move forward. He will look at what the Driftwood Library is doing and at the City Code, to make sure it will be consistent across all committees. She also checked with the Council to see if they have a plan for adding youth members to the Boards, but they do not.

- c. Beach Access (and Restroom) Repairs a list was provided in the agenda packet, which prioritized repairs for the 27 beach accesses, starting from those most needing work due to safety and other concerns. The crew is already working on many of these. Director Sprague invited the Board to provide their input if there were beach accesses they wanted us to focus on or if they think these should have a different priority, then as listed. Monte Demaris provided comments on the following:
 - 1. NW 15th St the railing has been replaced and the doors for the restroom are in house, ready to install. We are hoping to replace the doors on all the restrooms, but they are costly. Currently getting bids for interior and exterior painting.
 - 2. SW 51st St & Taft Bayfront Restroom the current, rusted, gazebo needs replaced and we are getting bids on doors/frames.
 - 3. NW 64th St for accessibility, we have already paved down to where the state allowed (to vegetation line).
 - 4. Siletz Bay Park recently reroofed the gazebo, and there are a few more things to be done. A car recently hit the building, which damaged the drinking fountain, and that will be repaired. No damage to the building.

We are also starting work on the restroom at NW 17th St. The design is in process, construction has not started. Director Sprague said the new design is really great, and that we hope to be able to duplicate the design for other restrooms. She will show the Board the design at the next meeting.

Director Sprague noted that since Spring, in addition to the \$125K capital beach access projects, they are now taking some of that money and using it to purchase doors, which need to be replaced (some are falling off their hinges, others are permanently locked, since we cannot open them) and also painting. The plan is to do repairs at 8-10 of the public restrooms and beach accesses, so they don't degrade further into disrepair.

Chair Mulholland questioned how, if we have \$20K/year for beach access repair (noted in minutes from the 7/24/2024 meeting), but the first two (2) projects on this list equal \$230K, how does that correlate?

Director Sprague clarified that the big numbers on the list were for capital projects (e.g. construction projects) and that the amount allocated per year for beach access repairs was actually \$25k, which is for operations and maintenance/upkeep of the beach accesses. There is a larger budget for operation and maintenance, but the line item for beach accesses was \$25K. She also confirmed that anything over \$10,000 is a capital project that needs to go before the City Council for approval.

Joan Prins had a question about the Regatta Park bathrooms and whether they have been renovated. Monte Demaris informed her that the floors and walls were repainted/repaired 5-6 years ago. Donna Eddy mentioned that she likes the restroom Canyons, and said it would be nice if other restrooms had warm water to help with clean-up.

Chair Mulholland asked about vandalism and graffiti and wondered if there was a way to beautify the restrooms, in a way that promotes the spirit of Lincoln City. The thought being that if something is pretty, people tend to treat it better. She suggested tying in to an art class at the high school or community college, and considering themed murals, even small ones (like the LC tentacles with each one holding something different). She mentioned that an Alaskan tourist town had decorated all of the trashcans so beautifully that you looked forward to seeing the next one. Robert Vincent said that a town in California had done the same, with fire hydrants and mailboxes. Director Sprague mentioned that she had just been contacted today (8/21/24) by someone wanting to redo the mural at Josephine Young park, so murals are a hot topic. She will discuss this further with Monte Demaris, and possibly ELC, to see if this would be a possibility, and will come back to the Board with more information. Board member Donna Eddy mentioned that the PAC is always looking for something to support with their money.

- d. Artist Joanne Daschel mosaic examples for SCDP sidewalk the Board loved them with the caveat that the bird names need to be capitalized, as proper nouns. Director Sprague said she had already discussed that with Joanne. There will be 14 of them in the park. Joan Prins wanted to make sure that all the birds live in our area. Director Sprague will double check that and will bring the plan to the next meeting to show the Board where each one will be placed.
- Mobi-mats the mats will stay up until Labor Day and, next year, Director Sprague and Monte Demaris will discuss locations again. Current locations were provided in the agenda packet for this meeting. We currently have 750 feet, thanks to the Friends of Lincoln City Parks & Recreation, who purchased an additional 350 feet. The mats at the Casino have been resituated, to solve the problem of no accessibility from the paved area to the Mobi-mat. Monte Demaris explained the problem initially was a small creek that was in the way, which is now gone. The crew also went out to NW 34th St (Grace Hammond beach access) and extended those mats. They also recently went out to all the mats to make sure they were situated properly and in good condition. All the mats will stay place through the season. Chair Mulholland questioned their durability, and Monte Demaris explained that they are extremely durable. He also mentioned that after they are picked up for the winter, they will be taken to the Parks shop and power washed, and then will be rolled up and stored on pallets. After the power washing, they look almost brand new. The only damage we have seen was from a car that was driving on the beach and peeled out over them. Monte Demaris was able to repair the mat, with a loss of only a few feet. Director Sprague mentioned they were made of 100% recycled polyester, so they should last a very long time. Joan Prins asked if we want more mats, and Director Sprague noted that they would have to assess to determine where we could put them. Although we always want more accessible equipment for the public, we would need to make sure the beach access would work with them.
- f. Murals during a discussion at the last meeting, Beth Towers wondered about that wall along the westside of 101 in the Nelscott area. Director Sprague said she learned the wall is owned by ODOT, so ELC is reaching out to ODOT. LCP&R and ELC would both like to do a mural there, so hopefully ODOT will give us permission. Chair Mulholland also mentioned that the long retaining wall below Dorchester House would be another possibility for a mural and Director Sprague said she would bring that up to ELC and PAC.

G. Parks and Recreation projects - board input

Director Sprague asked for Board input for an add-on to the new mural at Kirtsis Park. The artist, Vita Bakhtina, has finished the mural, but it does not extend to the left side of the wall (when facing it). The artist came back and would like to add-on to the mural. There will be a scavenger hunt element incorporated into the mural design, which was shared with the Board. LCP&R will not pay for this. The PAC just wanted to know if the Board was ok with adding on to the mural. Everyone was in favor and thought it has turned out great, so far.

H. New Business

a. New Business

There was no new business.

I. Board Member Comments

Chair Mulholland noted that, at the end of this meeting, Cheryl was retiring. The Board thanked her for everything she has done to support them through the years, and for the help she has given to many of them, individually. Cheryl mentioned that she would return in December, as a volunteer for Deck the Docks, and they were all happy to hear that.

J. Adjourn

Chair Mulholland adjourned the meeting at 3:45 p.m.